Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 12, 2013

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioners Tim Fowler, Eber Warren, and
Larry Whorton.

MEMBERS ABSENT: Charles Salter

OTHERS PRESENT: Richard Skreba, Jeff Aydelette — Compass Newspaper, C.T. Clayton,
Darlene Daniels — Town Clerk and Cathy Hurm — Town Manager

Mayor Potter called the meeting to order by having a moment of silence.

Mayor Potter called for discussion regarding any revision to the proposed agenda. Mayor
proposed revising the agenda to add a ferry resolution as item #1 under new business.
Commissioner Whorton motioned to adopt the revised agenda. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Whorton made a motion to accept the minutes from the January 8, 2013 meeting.
All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter opened the floor for Public Comments:

Richard Skreba wanted to discuss the rezoning, requested by the South Lake Property Owners
Association (SLPOA), of Wayfarers Cove and the waste water treatment facility. The SLPOA
requested that the Wayfarers Cove property be rezoned to R-15. Mr. Skreba also asked about the
intentions for a solid waste water treatment plant and as to the plans and who would own it? Mr.
Skreba noted that as he understood it the SLPOA wanted the property moved from the PUD into
bigger lots. The previous problem being that not all lots perked and a waste water treatment plan
was discussed. Mr. Skreba noted that the main concern seems to be about the impact on the
marina and no concern is given to the impact on his property. Mr. Skreba requested that if
changes are going to be made that an impact statement needs to be done because he did not
believe the area could handle all the septics.

Commissioner Warren responded that to the best of his knowledge, “No such animal exists right
now”. Commissioner Warren said that at the last meeting it was suggested that the area be re-
zoned to an R-20 designation once the plat had run out, with the exception of the marina.
Commissioner Warren advised that until the Board of Commissioners (BOC) gets the clearance
as to what Wayfarers Cove has planned and can no longer do, or the plat has run out, no action
can be taken. Commissioner Warren expressed the opinion that there will not be a sewage plant

1/6



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 12, 2013

built and it will be land as is, an R-15 will handle a lot with sewage and water and it would have
to go back to an R-20 so that properties could be developed with a septic tank and water.

Commissioner Whorton commented there are two plats. The first plat being the Marina and they
sold lots and it was recorded at the courthouse last year. Wayfarers Cove developers would have
to request that the second plat be voided or either build to those specifications. The waste water
plant is part of the marina plat. If the developers will not build with the current plat, they would
have to come before the BOC with a new plat and that will provide an opportunity to start with a
clean slate. The waste water treatment plant is part of the marina plat.

Mayor Potter thanked Mr. Skreba for his concerns and moved on to the Town Manager's Report:

Ms. Hurm introduced Darlene Daniels, the new town clerk, and advised they are currently
working on a Policy and Procedures manual for the office.

Ms. Hurm advised that two Zoning Permit Applications had been received:

1/23/2013, Permit number 1-13-1 from Arlington Place - Becca Lang for two unattached homes
on lot 62A, Permit denied 1/27/2013.

2/1/2013, Permit number 2-13-1 from Arlington Place — Becca Lang for two homes connected
by a porch on lot 62A, Permit approved 2/6/2013.

Ms. Hurm then requested consideration be given to purchasing a utility golf cart for use by the
town maintenance and office personnel for conducting town business. A list of uses and price
quotes obtained from NAPA and H&H Golf Carts, Inc., were provided to the BOC for review.

Ms. Hurm advised that following the last storm, a drain on County Club Drive had been blocked
with sand and would not allow for drainage. Larry Hackney, with help from the country club
cleaned out the drain and marked the spot for future reference. It is currently working properly.

Ms. Hurm stated that a request had been received from the Pamlico County Heritage Center
requesting the town to become a member of the Pamlico County Historical Association. The
request was presented to the committee responsible for reviewing and it was determined it did
not meet the criteria as established by town policy for further consideration. Request is being
denied.

There is also going to be another household hazardous waste and material recycling event in
Pamlico County on October 12, 2013. The location has not been announced at this time, but will
probably be behind the courthouse like last year. Commissioner Whorton stated he has posted it
on the town's web site events calendar.

2/6



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 12, 2013

Mayor Potter noted that the request on the golf cart would be something that would have to be
presented by a board member and that the BOC review the information on the golf cart for
consideration at the next BOC meeting.

Mayor Potter then moved on to Unfinished Business:
Commissioner Fowler stated that the bids for the drainage project on Phillips Drive had been

received and introduced C.T. Clayton to review the winning bid. Mr. Clayton advised six bids
were received as follows:

Sandy's Backhoe Service $88,217.00
Herring-Riverbark, Inc. $73,490.00
RGK Underground $72,225.00
A.C. Schultes of Carolina, Inc. $58,865.00
W.0. White Construction Co. $50,910.80
Cieszko Construction Co., Inc. $50,581.00

Mr. Clayton met with the low bidder and negotiated the bid down to $38,078.00. To negotiate
the bid down to that amount required the removal of the videoing and repairing any joints found
in the old 18” reinforced concrete pipe. The repairs would move 2/3 of the water flow from that
pipe into a new pipe and Mr. Clayton recommended that the pipe not be repaired. This will
reduce the cost by $7,600.00. Mr. Clayton recommended downsizing the new pipe from 30” to
247 which would not impact on the flow and will reduce the cost by $4,000.00. There is the
potential to remove a junction box with a drop inlet and reduce the cost by another $2,600.00.
Mr. Clayton stated that they will not know for certain until they get underground and research.
Mr. Clayton is working with Martin Cieszko, one of the owners of Cieszko Construction Co.,
Inc.

Commissioner Fowler reiterated that the $38,000.00 would not include the videoing thus they
would not know what is happening with the pipes underground and the pipe size was being
reduced from a 30” to a 24”. Commissioner Fowler noted that the down side to reducing the
pipe was that, with a ten year estimate, there may be a time when the pipes fill up. Mr. Clayton
assured Commissioner Fowler that there are no repercussions, that the pipes would still carry the
flow and not overflow or cause any flooding but it is not an ideal situation. Commissioner
Fowler then inquired about the new junction box if that was included in the $38,000. Mr.
Clayton stated that it was included in the cost but they would not know if it was needed until
they get out and start working on the project.

3/6



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 12, 2013

Mayor Potter has concerns with not removing the old pipe/tiles and spending a lot of money now
and having to redo in the future. Discussion followed regarding the flow between the pipes and
the reason for not removing the old pipe. Mr. Clayton stated he did not believe there would be a
problem with leaving the old tiles in place in as much as the water flow was being reduced. Mr.
Clayton furthered that the 18” pipe was too small to carry the flow of water, by changing the size
of the pipe it reduced the head (pressure on the pipe). Mayor Potter expressed his concerns with
water seeping into the foundation and creating the same problem that the town is trying to
address. Mayor Potter felt the ideal plan would be to remove the old pipe/tiles and replace with
new 20" sections and asked about the cost.

Mr. Clayton stated this would consist of adding a drop inlet and increasing the pipe from 24” to
30” down another 150 feet with another junction box. It would be approximately over another
$7,500.00.

Further discussion was on the lowest price of the bids and why the cost was higher than what
was estimated and Mr. Clayton stated that it was the estimated cost for materials and gave an
example on the price variations given by the bidders. Also discussed was the removal of the old
pipe and the cost involved and if new bids would be needed. Mr. Clayton stated that he could
negotiate with the lowest bidder on the price. What would be negotiated is increasing the size of
the pipe from 24” to 30” and putting in two drop inlets. The price to do the job would be
approximately $46,000.00.

Commissioner Fowler asked if anyone had any thoughts. Mayor Potter asked Mr. Clayton to ask
Mr. Cieszko what the cost would be. Mr. Clayton noted the added difficulties would be incurred
due to water continuously running through the area. Mayor Potter noted that the area is spring
fed.

Commissioner Fowler asked Mr. Clayton how much more time and money needs to be added to
modify the current contract and Mr. Clayton said it can be revised with the current language in
the contract. It should take three hours for Mr. Clayton to obtain the pricing for the following
items.

1. Increase the size of the pipe from 24” to 30” and determine if 30" is sufficient In front of
Paul Johnson's house.

2. Add two drop inlets on the 30” pipe.

3. Take the 18” pipes out

4/6



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 12, 2013

Commissioner Whorton inquired as to why the old pipe was being taken up. Mayor Potter
explained that he was concerned that continuing to use some of those pipes, that water flowing
through would recreate the problem that the town was trying to address. Mr. Clayton stated that
with the two drop basins (inlets) there would no longer be water going through those pipes and
they could be crushed. Commissioner Fowler then corrected his request for Mr. Clayton to
obtain pricing, deleting item #3.

Commissioner Fowler made a motion to add three hours onto Mr. Clayton’s contract. All ayes.
Motion passed.

M. Clayton asked the BOC to consider allowing Mayor Potter and Commissioner Fowler to
make the decision to increase the contract without having a special meeting to allow the
contractor to move ahead with the work. If the delay continues the cost could change.

Commissioner Fowler made a motion that he and Mayor Potter be allowed to approve the
increase as long as the total amount of the contract is not higher than $45,000.00 and all
requirements were met. Mayor Potter asked if there was any discussion, there being no further
discussion a vote was taken. All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter then asked Mr. Clayton to move ahead negotiating the contract.

Mayor Potter then moved to New Business: The new business was the ferry resolution. Mayor
Potter stated that he met with the County Manager, Tim Buck, and several other mayors a couple
of weeks ago and this was one of the issues discussed. The county has retained Joe McClees as
their lobbyist in Raleigh on behalf of the county to nullify the fees due to start July 1, 2013.
Mayor Potter asked if the board wished to resubmit the ferry resolution that the BOC submitted
last year to the House and Senate committees that are dealing with these proposed tolls.
Commissioner Fowler made a motion to resubmit the resolution. Commissioner Whorton asked
if the wording was the same and Mayor Potter stated it was exactly the same. There being no
further discussion a vote was taken. All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter then moved to the Commissioner Reports:

Commissioner Warren provided the budget report for the period ending January 31, 2013 which
reflected the following:

Commissioner Warren stated that ad valor em taxes collection rate, when including the amount
collected in February, is at 96%. Commissioner Warren believed the town would receive the

5/6



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 12, 2013

revenue for which it budgeted. Commissioner Warren noted that, at this time, expenditures are
just under 40% which is extremely good.

Commissioner Warren provided the budget report for the period ending January 31, 2013 which
reflected the following: First Citizens Checking, $6,446.78; First Citizens Money Market,
$247,000.00; North Carolina Management Trust, $200,531.23; First South Bank Savings,
$104,599.17 and First South Bank CD, $40,441.26.

Commissioner Whorton asked if Commissioner Warren thought that the town would be able to
reduce taxes again this year. Commissioner Warren responded that given the budget is at 96%
with five months remaining we may or may not be able to reduce taxes. Commissioner Warren
stated that he will let the BOC know if the BOC can reduce taxes before they decide on the 2014
budget.

Mayor Potter asked if there was any further discussion or miscellaneous information, there was
none.

Commissioner Whorton motioned to adjourn. All ayes. Motion passed.

Q;) Wu/»b% Wﬂmﬂz& / Crrr

Darlene Daniels, Town Clerk

6/6



